
Contact:  Paul Mountford, Democratic Services  
Tel: 01270 686472 
E-Mail: paul.mountford@cheshireeast.gov.uk  

 

Cabinet Member for Safer and Stronger 
Communities 

 

Agenda 
 

Date: Monday, 28th February, 2011 
Time: 9.00 am 
Venue: Committee Suite 1 & 2, Westfields, Middlewich Road, 

Sandbach CW11 1HZ 
 
The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. 
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons 
indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report. 
 
PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any personal and/or 

prejudicial interests in any item on the agenda. 
 

3. Public Speaking Time/Open Session   
 
 In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a period of 10 minutes is 

allocated for members of the public to address the meeting on any matter relevant to 
the work of the meeting. Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 
minutes but the Chairman or person presiding will decide how the period of time 
allocated for public speaking will be apportioned where there are a number of 
speakers. Members of the public are not required to give notice to use this facility. 
However, as a matter of courtesy, a period of 24 hours’ notice is encouraged. 
 
Members of the public wishing to ask a question at the meeting should provide at 
least three clear working days’ notice in writing and should include the question with 
that notice. This will enable an informed answer to be given. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



4. Adoption of Part II of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976  (Pages 1 - 6) 

 
 To consider a proposal to adopt the provisions of Part II of the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 to apply throughout the Borough of Cheshire 
East. 
 

 
 
(There are no Part 2 items) 
 



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

Cabinet Member for Safer and Stronger Communities 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
28th February 2011 

Report of: Legal Team Manager (Regulatory) 
Subject/Title: Adoption of Part II of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 

Provisions) Act 1976 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Rachel Bailey 
___________________________________                                                                       
 
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 The report provides details of a proposal to adopt the provisions of Part II of the 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 (‘the 1976 Act’) to 
apply throughout the Borough of Cheshire East.  

 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Cabinet Member for Safer & Stronger Communities is requested to resolve 

that the provisions of Part II of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 (other than section 45) be adopted to apply throughout the 
Borough of Cheshire East with effect from 31st March 2011. 

 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 At the meeting on 20th December 2010 the Cabinet Member for Safer & 

Stronger Communities resolved to authorise the Borough Solicitor, or officer 
acting on her behalf, to provide notice of the Council’s intention to pass a 
resolution to adopt the provisions of Part II of the 1976 Act. The adoption was 
proposed in order to consolidate the three previous resolutions of the 
predecessor district authorities into one resolution and to ensure certainty in 
any enforcement action taken under the legislation. 

 
3.2 Notice of intention has been published in accordance with the provisions of 

section 45 of the 1976 Act. The Cabinet Member is therefore now requested to 
adopt the legislation as per the recommendation at paragraph 2.1.  

 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 All 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 N/A 
 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



 
6.0 Policy Implications including - Climate change 
                                                              - Health 
6.1 None  
 
7.0 Financial Implications (Authorised by the Borough Treasurer) 
 
7.1 None. 
 
8.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 

8.1 Section 45(2) of the 1976 Act provides that if the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 
is in force in the area of a district council, the council may resolve that the 
provisions of Part II of the 1976 Act (other than section 45) are to apply to the 
relevant area; and if the council do so resolve those provisions shall come into 
force in the relevant area on the day specified in that behalf in the resolution 
(which must not be before the expiration of the period of one month beginning 
with the day on which the resolution is passed). “The relevant area” for these 
purposes means: (a) if the Act of 1847 is in force throughout the area of the 
council, that area; and (b) if the Act of 1847 is in force for part only of the area 
of the council, that part of that area. 

8.2 Section 45(3) provides that a council shall not pass a resolution adopting Part II 
of the 1976 Act unless it has (a) published a notice of intention to pass the 
resolution in a local newspaper circulating in the area for two consecutive 
weeks; and (b) served a copy of the notice, not later than the date on which it is 
first published in the newspaper, on each Parish or community council within 
the area to be affected. 

 
9.0 Risk Management  
 
9.1 It is suggested that adoption of the legislation, in accordance with section 45 of 

the 1976 Act, will ensure certainty in any enforcement action. 
 
10.0 Background and Options 
 
10.1 Part II of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 contains 

provisions in relation to the licensing of private hire and hackney carriage 
vehicles, drivers and operators. The legislation contains provisions which allow 
local authorities to control the operation and use of private hire and hackney 
carriage vehicles and to protect the public by ensuring that vehicles are fit for 
use as licensed vehicles and drivers are ‘fit and proper’ to act as such. 

 
10.2 Each of the three predecessor district Councils made resolutions to adopt Part 

II of the 1976 Act. Crewe and Nantwich Borough Council resolved on 27th May 
1982 that Part II would come into force in its area on 1st October 1982. 
Macclesfield Borough Council resolved on 20th October 1977 that the 
provisions would come into force on 1st April 1978. Congleton Borough Council 
resolved on 1st October 1981 that the provisions would come into force in its 
area on 1st November 1981. 

Page 2



 
10.3 It is suggested that it would be beneficial to consolidate the adoption 

resolutions for the purpose of clarity for the future and to ensure certainty in any 
enforcement action taken under the legislation.  

 
10.4 At the meeting on 20th December 2010, following a recommendation from the 

Licensing Committee, the Cabinet Member for Safer & Stronger Communities 
resolved to authorise the Borough Solicitor, or officer acting on her behalf, to 
provide notice of the Council’s intention to pass a resolution to adopt the 
provisions of Part II of the 1976 Act.  

 
10.5 In accordance with section 45(3) of the 1976 Act, a notice of intention (a copy 

of which is attached as Appendix A) was published in local newspapers 
throughout the Borough during the weeks commencing 31st January 2011 and 
7th February 2011. In addition the notice was served on the Town and Parish 
Councils and the Parish Meetings within the Borough.  

 
10.6 The Cabinet Member is asked to resolve that the provisions shall apply within 

the Borough with effect from 31st March 2011. This date is proposed in order to 
comply with the requirements of section 45(2) of the 1976 Act which prescribes 
that the date specified “must not be before the expiration of the period of one 
month beginning with the day on which the resolution is passed.” 

 
10.7 The alternative option would be not to adopt the provisions. However, this 

would mean that the benefits identified in paragraph 10.3 above would not be 
achieved. 

 
11.0 Overview of Year One and Term One Issues 
 
11.1 None 
 
12.0 Access to Information 
 

          The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the report 
writer: 

 
 Appendix A – Notice of Intention 
 
 Name: Mrs K Khan  
 Designation: Solicitor, Legal Services 

           Tel No: 01270 685847 
           Email: kate.khan@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

 
  

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 
 

CHESHIRE EAST BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Part II Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN in accordance with section 45(3) of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 (‘the 1976 Act’), that it is the 
intention of Cheshire East Borough Council (‘the Council’), to pass a 
resolution at a meeting of the Cabinet Member for Safer and Stronger 
Communities on 28th February 2011 that the provisions of Part II of the 1976 
Act (other than section 45) shall be adopted and shall apply within the 
Borough of Cheshire East, with effect from 31st March 2011. 
 
The predecessor district councils (i.e. Congleton Borough Council, Crewe & 
Nantwich Borough Council and Macclesfield Borough Council) previously 
resolved to adopt the provisions of Part II of the 1976 Act, which relate to the 
licensing of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles, drivers and 
operators. The Council’s intention is to adopt the provisions to take effect 
across the whole of the Borough of Cheshire East. The intended resolution 
will have the effect of confirming the Borough of Cheshire East as a 
‘controlled district’ for the purposes of the 1976 Act. 
 
Caroline Elwood 
Interim Borough Solicitor 
Dated: 2nd February 2011 
 
 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Adoption of Part II of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
	Adoption of Part 2 of LG Misc Prov Act 1976 - Appendix A


